PARTNERSHIP AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2019

PRESENT:Councillor Gwilym O Jones (Chair)
Councillor Robert Llewelyn Jones (Vice-Chair)

Councillors T LI Hughes MBE, K P Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Dafydd Roberts, Margaret Murley Roberts and Nicola Roberts

Mr Dafydd Gruffydd - Co-Opted Member

Other Members of the County Council invited in respect of Item 4

Councillors Lewis Davies, John Griffith, Richard Griffiths, Bryan Owen, Dylan Rees

- IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive, Assistant Chief Executive (Partnerships, Community & Service Improvements), Interim Director of Social Services, Service Manager (Elderly) (IR), Service Manager (Learning Disabilities) (BW), Scrutiny Manager (AD), Scrutiny Officer (GR), Committee Officer (MEH).
- APOLOGIES: Councillors Glyn Haynes, Alun Roberts.

Councillors Llinos M Huws, R Meirion Jones, Alun Mummery, Ieuan Williams, Robin Williams (*Other Members of the County Council invited in respect of Item 4).*

ALSO PRESENT: Mrs Ffion Johnson – West Area Director, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Dr Dyfrig ap Dafydd (General Practitioner), Mr Jason Golding – Services Manager - Older Persons Mental Health (West) – Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Mr Mark Couchman - Adult Services Manager - Mental Health (Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board), Mrs Sian Purcell – Chief Officer, Medrwn Môn.

The Chair and Members of the Committee wished to congratulate Mr Alwyn Rhys Jones on his appointment as Interim Director of Social Services and wished him well in his post.

1 APOLOGIES

As noted above.

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

None received.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 February, 2019 were confirmed.

4 HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE COMMUNITY FOR ADULTS

The Chair welcomed representatives from Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board and the Chief Officer from Medrwn Môn to the meeting. He also welcomed Dr Dyfrig ap Dafydd a General Practitioner from Llangefni who also leads on the GP Cluster project on Anglesey.

Submitted – a report by the Interim Director of Social Services in relation to where the Health Board and the County Council are working in partnership to change how support is provided within communities. These areas of work will be fundamental in changing the approach over the coming years.

The Interim Director of Social Services and the representatives from the Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board, Dr Dyfrig ap Dafydd and the Chief Officer of Medrwn Môn reported as follows :-

• **GP Cluster Model** - In order the improve Primary Care Practitioners' ability to support their communities the GP Cluster Model is being strengthened across North Wales. A Cluster brings together all local services involved in health and care across a geographical area. Working as a cluster ensures care is better co-ordinated to promote the wellbeing of individuals and communities. There are 11 GP surgeries that operate in the Anglesey Cluster area.

On Anglesey there is one cluster which has seen recent improvements with additional Physiotherapists and Pharmacists involved within the service. Advanced Practice Physiotherapists allow people presenting with musculoskeletal problems to be seen locally as an alternative to seeing their GP. The Physiotherapy led service provides a fast local access and early management for patients, preventing clinical deterioration and the risk of developing chronic conditions. The Anglesey Cluster have been working closely with the Mental Health and Wellbeing Centre, Abbey Road to set up support provision for Tier 0 Mental Health patients within the practice.

Anglesey Cluster will be focusing on and further developing the following areas from April, 2019 onwards :-

- Social Prescribing Model working with Medrwn Môn to develop the service further around the community hubs in order to pull patients away from GP practice;
- Further work with the Police and Crime Commissioner in developing the SPOA and early intervention support for vulnerable people and their families.
- Launch of the Anglesey Social Prescribing model in April.
- Community Resource Team Within the Anglesey Cluster there will be 3 • Community Resource Teams (CRT). Within each area, there will be office space that will allow staff from across Health and the Local Authority to work alongside each other and access their own IT networks/systems. The CRT's in Anglesey will mean that the Adult Social Workers and Occupational Therapists will primarily work from these locality bases. The goal of the CRT's is that by the end of 2019/20 all adults living on Anglesey will have simple and direct access to a Community Resource Team. Teams will provide a seamless service by providing a co-ordinated approach to health and social care. Some support will exist at locality/cluster level and will be shared across all areas i.e. Income and Charging Support, Specialist Medical Services (Diabetes, Heart Failure, Podiatry, Dieticians, Speech and Language Therapy, Arts Therapy, Mental Health Support Workers, Specialist Nursing and Housing. The CRT's will be configured to meet demand both in and out of hours (Nightowls service); will be central to developing resilient communities; support monitoring of high risk patients to support admission avoidance and support early discharge from hospital and support people back into their communities.
 - Care of the Elderly GP (COTE) supports patients in care homes and supports the delivery of TEPs (Treatment Escalation Plans) to reduce inappropriate admissions to secondary care. The focus is now to allow people to be able to stay within their home environment for as long as possible and that services are available locally to support people.
 - Social Prescribing All 7 Local Asset Co-Ordinators are in post and have been linked to individual practices in order to support Primary Care. The social prescribing service has been introduced to the Cluster areas to achieve more appropriate use of health and social services, improve health and well-being outcomes and enable patients to be pro-active in managing their own conditions and well-being. The service propose to maximise the use of community assets, build on the use of volunteers and existing voluntary services so that people can access the right support and be accessible to as many people as possible within the community.
 - Falls Prevention falls and fractures in the elderly are debilitating to patients quality of life and places a large demand on primary, community and secondary care services.
 - Mental Health Development within our communities the North Wales Local Implementation Teams (LIT) have been developed to ensure implementation of the changes to mental health services set out in the strategy 'Together for Mental Health in North Wales'. The aims of the LIT is to use the 5 ways to Wellbeing as the foundation of emotional and psychological wellbeing

i.e. working with voluntary and third sector agencies to review their role with people at risk of severe mental health crises; developing local alternatives to admission i.e. crisis cafes, strengthened home treatment services and stepdown services; ensuring Welsh language needs are considered and provided; working with statutory, voluntary and third sector agencies to review the unmet needs of people with mental illness and to ensure gaps in service provision are addressed. Awareness raising training package has been developed i.e. bar staff, taxi drivers, hairdressers, and tattooist and nail parlours.

A Mental Health Housing pathway has been developed in order to ensure that people with mental health issues are provided with equal opportunities in securing appropriate accommodation. A multi-agency group meets regularly to identify and prioritise housing needs. A step-down pilot project has been developed by the Council's Housing department.

• Môn Community Link work with Medrwn Môn

Medrwn Môn as the Local County Voluntary Council have been a vital partner in assisting both Health & Social Care Services to support communities differently through the development of Môn Community Link. A dedicated Link Officer deals with all enquiries and referrals and gives information and advice or will pass the referrals to one of a team of 7 Local Asset Co-Ordinators. The support is available to those within the communities who may feel isolated or lonely, or would like to take part in more activities in their local area. Referrals to the service can be made by a number of partners including Social Workers, GP's, Community Mental Health Teams, Physiotherapists, Third Sector Organisations or by the person themselves. The facility can allow people to be able to live within their home environment longer.

The Committee considered the report and raised the following main issues:-

- Reference was made to availability of appointments within GP Surgeries with some people experiencing problems attaining appointments to see their GP's. Dr Dyfrig ap Dafydd responded that whilst it seemed that GP surgeries have different procedures as regards to the appointments systems he noted that doctor surgeries need to learn from each other and share examples of different appointment systems and approaches. He noted that he favoured a triage system which gauges whom a patients needs to be seen rather than a GP appointment. Dr Dyfrig ap Dafydd said that he appreciated that the on-line appointments system needs to be enhanced together with skyping, emails and phone calls system to the surgery. It was expressed that the matter will need to be considered within the Cluster meetings;
- Reference was made to access to Mental Health services as some people are having difficulties attaining an appointment with a GP. The representatives from the Mental Health Team responded that people who are already within the Mental Health system either through primary or secondary care should have all the contact details to the Mental Health Team. However, for people who are experiencing new crisis or need the service of the Mental Health Team, documentation is available but could be better publicise. Most of the new referral come from the GP practices but there are private care Mental Health

workers working at GP practices which could be improved; a suggestion of a 'drop in session' within the surgeries. ICAN centres can also give support and guidance to Mental Health issues is been considered. The Chief Officer of Medrwn Môn said that through the Môn Community Link a low level services is afforded to people who wish to know about activities and services available within their communities. Referrals from GP's, Police, Social Services, Occupational Therapists, Third Sector and people themselves or relatives can be dealt with through the Môn Community Link;

- Reference was made that joint working with Social Services and Betsi Cadwaladr is focused on team working. Questions were raised if one of the services within the team was unable to execute the support given to patients would it be detrimental to the team working of the project. An example was given that if Physiotherapy was under pressure and unable to achieve the goals of the joint working partnership. Mrs Ffion Johnson responded that Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapies is considered as part of a facility within hospitals and there is a need to change the culture to enable these professionals to be located within the communities and to enhance their skills as they work independently. She noted that more physiotherapy sessions are afforded with GP surgeries now and there is a need for change in mind set and culture of people that it is not always a GP they require. It was also said that workforce planning needs to be considered to train more people within specific medical professions;
- Questions were raised as to who was leading the working in partnership to change how support is provided within communities. The Interim Director of Social Services reported that there is a governance structure in place through the Public Services Board, Integrated Health Board and Regional Board with representation of all the partnership parties members of these Boards.

The Chair thanked the representatives from the Health Service and Medrwn Môn for attending the meeting.

It was **RESOLVED to note the work undertaken in partnership with the Health Board and the local authority to change how support is provided within the communities.**

ACTION : To receive a progress report on the partnership working to the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee in twelve months.

5 PROGRESS REPORT ON THE DELIVERY OF THE WELLBEING PLAN FOR THE GWYNEDD AND ANGLESEY PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD

Submitted – a progress report by the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Programme Manager on the delivery of the Well-being Plan for the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board.

The aim of the Well-being of the Future Generations Act (2015) is to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The Public Services Board Well-being Assessment for the Anglesey well-being areas was published in May 2017 and following a series of engagement and consultation session, the Well-being Plan was established in 2018. The Well-being Plan

confirms the two objectives and six priority fields for which it was agreed that the Board could collaborate in order to ensure the best results for the residents of Gwynedd and Anglesey.

The Chief Executive reported that the Public Services Board has been established on a secure foundation with continued work expected to be undertaken within the Board to reach its commitment as regards to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Programme Manager reported that the Public Services Board agreed on priority areas to achieve the objectives noted within the report. Four sub-groups have been established under Objective 1 – Communities which thrive and are prosperous in the long-term as follows :-

- The Welsh Language Sub-Group The sub-group submitted a request to Welsh Government to support the 'ARFer' project which enables public bodies to share good practice in dealing with linguistic habits and the understanding of behavioural psychology.
- Homes for local people Sub-Group The sub-group will develop a detailed business case to (1) Appraise innovative housing models. (2) produce a financial case and determine funding arrangements for the schemes (3) develop innovative housing in our communities.
- The impact of poverty on the well-being of our communities Sub-group The sub-group will emphasise the relationship between equality and poverty and develop a tool to extend equality impact assessment to also include the effects of poverty.
- The impact of climate change on the well-being of our communities Sub-group The work of sub-group will enable the Public Services Board to consider the impacts of climate change on the delivery of public services to communities in the area.

The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Programme Manager further reported that the two priority areas of 'health and care of adults' and the welfare and achievements of children and young people' contribute towards Objective 2. It was agreed to establish one sub-group to address the two priorities – The West integrated Health and Social Care Group.

The Sub-Groups will be presenting update reports to the full Public Services Board at its meeting to be held on 13 March, 2019 and to seek support of the Board to continue to develop the work undertaken to date by the sub-groups. The Sub-Groups reports to the Board on a quarterly basis. It was also noted that the Public Services Board is currently subject to scrutiny by the designated Scrutiny Committee of both Gwynedd and Anglesey local authorities. It is anticipated that the Public Services Board's annual report will be submitted to the Scrutiny Committee's in June.

Mrs Ffion Johnson, West Area Director, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board said that she is at present the Chair of the Public Services Board but she will be withdrawing from the role to concentrate on the Health and Social Care Group as Chair.

The Committee considered the report and raised the following:-

- Reference was made that people can become isolated within a Care Home when the Welsh language is not spoken. Questions were raised as to how the Public Services Board was addressing such an issue as part of their Welsh language priority to promote the use of Welsh language. The Chair of the Public Services Board responded that as part of her role within the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board there has been complaints from families and residents of Care Homes as regards to the Welsh language not been spoken but said that the Health Board is focusing on promoting the Welsh language within its front line staff at present and it is anticipated that it will filter down in other staff within the service;
- Clarification was sought as to the background of the ARFer scheme. The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Programme Manager responded that the ARFer scheme is a project led by the Bangor University with regard to developing the use of the Welsh Language amongst Welsh speakers who do not use the language or are not comfortable in speaking Welsh. The University intends to expand the programme and test is effectiveness in a variety of different contexts. The Chief Executive said that the County Council has been promoting the use of the Welsh language within services and developing Welsh language skills with members of staff;
- Reference was made that it was an intention by the Public Services Board to establish a joint scrutiny panel between the two counties. The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Programme Manager responded that discussion will be undertaken within the Board as regard to establishing a joint scrutiny panel within the coming months.

It was RESOLVED to note the progress of the work of the Public Services Board.

ACTION : That the Annual Report by the Public Services Board be submitted to the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee at its meeting to be held in June.

6 WORK PROGRAMME

Submitted – a report by the Scrutiny Officer on the Committee's Work Programme to July 2019.

It was RESOLVED to note the Work Programme to July 2019.

ACTION : As above.

COUNCILLOR GWILYM O JONES CHAIR